
 
Owen D. Young Central School District 

Board of Education Meeting 
February 13, 2023 

6:30 PM 
 

The mission of the Owen D. Young Central School is to provide an excellent educational environment 
in which all students can achieve success and become contributing citizens.  
 

AGENDA 
 

 
I. Call to Order - 6:30 p.m. – Library 
 
II.  Pledge to the Flag 
 
III.  Agenda:  

a. Review February 13, 2023 agenda 
 
IV.  Minutes: 

a. Review January 9, 2023 minutes 
 
V.  Privilege of the floor  

Persons wishing to speak should first be recognized by the President, then identify 
themselves, any organization they may be representing at the meeting, and the agenda topic 
that they wish to discuss. Multiple persons addressing similar comments are required to be 
addressed by one spokesperson.  

Topics must be addressed one at a time with each individual's comments limited to 
three (3) minutes for a total of twelve (12) minutes designated for the first public comment 
session limited to topics listed on the agenda. Such limits may be reduced or expanded for a 
particular meeting by a simple majority of the Board.  

The Board of Education and administration will consider all comments and will not 
comment or answer any questions before examining and evaluating relevant information. Once 
the Board of Education and administration have examined relevant information they may so 
choose to provide comment/response at the subsequent meeting during Routine Business, 
entitled “Response to Privilege of the Floor”.  

 
VI. Executive Session –Personnel 
 To discuss items related to the medical, financial, credit or employment history of a particular 

person, or matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, 
suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular person; and to discuss student issues.   

 
VII.  Routine Business 

a. Approval of the Treasurer’s Report for December 2022 
 
VIII.  New Business 

a. Approve 2023-24 District Calendar 
b. Approve Owen D. Young students participating in the Richfield Clay Targeting Club with 

Richfield Springs for Spring 2023. 



c. Approve Resolution authorizing district to participate in Oswego County BOCES 
Cooperative Purchasing Program. 

d. Approve items for disposal dated 2-13-23 
 

IX. Policies 
Approve 1st Reading Policy Numbers 4300 – Borrowing Funds, 4301 – Investments Policy, 

4302 – Insurance, 4303 – Reserve Funds, 4400 – Audit Committee, 4401 – Annual Audit, 4402 – 
Auditing Claims for Payment, 4403 – Medicaid Billing Compliance, 4500 – General Procurement 
Standards, 4501 Competitive Bidding, 4502 – Non-Bidding Purchasing, 4503 – Sale of Surplus 
Property, 4504 – Purchase Orders, 4505 – Accounting of Fixed Assets, Inventory and Tracking, 4506 – 
Use of Federal Funds for Political Expenditures, 4507 – Procurement – Uniform Grant Guidance for 
Federal Awards, 8500 – Special Education Programs and Services 

 
X.  Board Forum  

a. President’s Report  
b. Round Table 

XI. Administrative Reports and Recommendations  
a. Superintendent/Building Principal’s Report  

a. Transportation  
i. Driver shortage 

• Using Richfield transportation for sports runs 
• Contracting with Birnie Bus for 1 regular run 

ii. Should ODY contract with outside company for 2023-24 and beyond 
b. Capital project & Capital Outlay update 
c. Instructional Coach - BOCES 
d. Discipline report – January 2023 
e. Budget transfers – January 2023 

 
b. Department updates 

a. Guidance  
b. Athletics & Curriculum 
c. Technology  
d. Communications 
e. Maintenance 
f. Library/Media Center 

  
c. Business Official’s Report  

a. Review preliminary Budget 
 
XII.  CSE/CPSE Recommendations:  Dated 2/13/23 
  
XIII.  Personnel Actions: Dated 2/13/23  
  
XIV. Adjournment  







January 9, 2023  1 
 

Owen D. Young Central School District 
Board of Education Meeting 

January 9, 2023 
The mission of the Owen D. Young Central School is to provide an excellent educational environment in which all students 

can achieve success and become contributing citizens. 
Minutes 

President Marshall called the meeting to order at 6:33pm. Those present were led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
Present: Quendryth Marshall; President  Holly Pullis; Vice President Ethan Durham; Trustee 
 Paul Kennerknecht; Trustee  George Mower; Trustee  Brennan Fahey; Superintendent 
 Fred Seifried; Treasurer   Jenn Jones; District Clerk  Jessica Pollak; Teacher 

Charley Fricke; Teacher   Evan Davis; Student  Jaycie Ingerham; Student  
 Steven Teleki; Student   Trinity Darling; Student  Andrew Bryceland; Student 

Cooper Reynolds; Student   Bella Valenta; Student  Arseniy Korol; Student 
The Board reviewed the January 9, 2023 Agenda and the December 12, 2022 Minutes and found both to be correct. 
 
Senior, Jaycie Ingerham, shared her post-graduation plans with the Board. She plans to work in retail for a year and possibly 
college at that point. She plans to stay in the area. 
 
Senior, Evan Davis, shared his post-graduation plans with the Board. He plans to study Criminal Justice at Alfred University 
for 4 years and earn his Bachelors of Science. After that he plans to join the state police.  
 
The Junior Class presented their plans for the 2023 Spring Prom. They plan to hold it on May 27th at Beardsley Castle. They 
walked the Board through the menu and that the venue is included if the catering would be done in house. They presented 
projected costs for dinner, DJ, photographer, decorations, and the projected number of guests. Photographs of the venue were 
shared and the Prom will be a masquerade theme of Phantom of the Opera. 
 
The Senior Class presented their plans for the annual Senior Trip in June. There are 2 plans, one for a day trip and one for an 
overnight. The overnight would involve a day at Darien Lake Park, an overnight at a hotel, then Niagara Falls the next day. 
The back up plan is to do a day trip to Buffalo which would still involve a stop at Niagara Falls, and an afternoon at Darien 
Lake, returning to the school the same day. They walked through costs for each option and answered questions from the Board. 
 
Upon a motion by Vice President Pullis, seconded by Trustee Mower, the Board entered into Executive Session at 7:00pm for 
the purpose of discussing transportation and a personnel matter. 
The Board exited Executive Session at 7:17pm.      MOTION CARRIED 5:0 
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Kennerknecht, seconded by Trustee Mower, the Board approved the November 2022 Treasurer’s 
Report.           MOTION CARRIED 5:0 

Vice President Pullis asked about budgeting and adjustments as well as sports budgeting for the year. 
President Marshall asked about particular line items. 

 
Upon a motion by Vice President Pullis, seconded by Trustee Kennerknecht, the Board approved the January 9, 2023 Disposal 
List           MOTION CARRIED 5:0 

Vice President Pullis asked if any of the items are in good enough shape to be used by non-profit organizations. It was 
discussed that some of the items are still in good shape, just outdated and less practical than newer systems. 

 
Upon a motion by Vice President Pullis, seconded by Trustee Kennerknecht, the Board approved the Service Unit Association 
of Owen D. Young Central School Contract Resolution for 2023-2026.    MOTION CARRIED 5:0 

Resolution 
Ratifying Tentative Three (3) Year Agreement with The Service Unit Association of Owen D. Young CSD 

Whereas, the negotiating teams for the District and the Service Unit Association of the Owen D. Young CSD (the 
“Association”) reached a tentative collective bargaining agreement (the “Tentative Agreement”) which covers the 
three (3) year period including school years 2023-2024 through and including 2025-2026; and 

Whereas, the Board has been fully briefed regarding the terms of the Tentative Agreement, and has received the 
recommendation of the Superintendent; and 

Whereas, the Board desires to formally enter its approval into the record and fully ratify the Tentative Agreement 
and all actions take thereunder; there therefor, it is hereby 

Resolved, that the Board hereby fully approves and ratifies the Tentative Agreement reached between the Owen D. 
Young Central School District for the three (3) year period from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026 dated December 
22, 2022 and be it further 

Resolved, that this resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
Upon a motion by Vice President Pullis, seconded by Trustee Kennerknecht, the Board approved items b-g listed below. 

b. Approval of ODY students participating in Boys and Girls Track with Richfield Springs CS during the 2022-23 school 
year. 



January 9, 2023  2 
 

c. Approve recommendation to accept Capital Project 2023/24 bid of $1.167.000 for General Contractor services from Bast 
Hatfield Construction LLC. 

d. Approve recommendation to accept Capital Project 2023/24 bid of $125,000 for Plumbing services from H.J. Brandeles 
Corporation. 

e. Approve recommendation to accept Capital Project 2023/24 bid of $1,106,000 for HVAC services from H.J. Brandeles 
Corporation. 

f. Approve recommendation to accept Capital Project 2023/24 bid of $275,200 for Electrical services from Mid-State 
Electrical Contracting. 

g. Approve recommendation to accept Capital Project 2023-24 TIPS purchase order of $145,000 for roofing services from 
Pulver Roofing.         MOTION CARRIED 5:0 

Superintendent Fahey discussed alternates that had to be considered and which would not be accepted. To avoid the process 
of possibly going through a re-bid, other options on how to accomplish the alternates were discussed. Trustee Mower asked 
if any members of the Board had heard opposition to the spending. He was answered that there isn’t much, that most 
community members are ok with it as long as taxes aren’t increased to cover it. 

 
President Marshall shared with the Board that Andy LaLonde has retired, the Board wishes him well. 
 
President Marshall shared that Mike Clements from the Herkimer BOCES Board has passed away. The Board sends their 
condolences to his family and friends. 
 
It was announced that Vice President Pullis will be assuming the role of Herkimer BOCES Board President. The Board 
congratulates her. 
 
President Marshall updated the Board with regards to the ODY Boosters Club and that they are working closely with the 
Richfield Springs Booster Club. She also updated the Board on the indoor girl’s soccer team that is being started by Mr. Seifried. 
The Annual Sport Banquet was also discussed; since Richfield hosted last year ODY will be hosting this year. 
 
The Board discussed the continued combined sports with Richfield, noting how well the students are working together. 
 
Vice President Pullis updated the Board regarding BOCES business. The Board discussed the timeframe for the new 
superintendent search and that they are optimistic there will be a candidate in time for Sandy Sherwood’s retirement in 
September. The Board also discussed the need for volunteers for the Facility Committee and that BOCES Budget presentations 
are beginning in February. The Board agreed they would like to have a presentation in April. 
 
Vice President Pullis shared materials that have been put together by BOCES regarding the role of education; reminded the 
Board about the SBI Showcase at Herkimer BOCES on March 16th, as well as the annual review of the CTE Program, sharing 
that last year the ITA Program was reviewed and updated to now include 28 college credits. 
 
Trustee Kennerknecht asked if social media platforms are being required for assignments, specifically mentioning TicToc. The 
Board discussed the balance of using social media platforms to engage students and teaching them skills versus opening the 
door to abuse of the programs. 
 
Trustee Durham asked for follow up information regarding the mental health program, The Expertise Project, that was discussed 
at the last meeting. Superintendent Fahey shared Ms. Soper has reached out and is waiting for a response. 
 
Mr. Seifried presented the new IRS Mileage rate that was issued, the Cafeteria balance, an update on the Free Lunch Threshold, 
and the Electric Bus grant (ODY has not been denied yet, but is not listed in the approvals that were released recently). He 
went on to review the 2022-23 school year budget regarding where the school currently is versus where it is projected to be by 
the end of the year. He also discussed the preliminary projections for the 2023-24 school year. 
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Kennerknecht, seconded by Vice President Pullis, the Board accepted the Cornell Agricultural Grant 
for $5,000.          MOTION CARRIED 5:0 
 
Lastly, Mr. Seifried reviewed the Federal Grants that the school received, including how money has already been spent and 
what the remaining money will be spent on. 
 
Mr. Seifried presented the Management Letter from Cwynar & Company issued after the 2021-2022 audit as well as the 
Corrective Action Plan drafted in response. 
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Kennerknecht, seconded by Vice President Pullis, the Board approved the Management Letter from, 
and Audit conducted by, Cwynar & Company for the 2021-2022 audit.    MOTION CARRIED 5:0 
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Mower, seconded by Trustee Kennerknecht, the Board approved the Corrective Action Plan for the 
2021-2022 Audit.          MOTION CARRIED 5:0 



January 9, 2023  3 
 

 
Upon a motion by Trustee Kennerknecht, seconded by Trustee Mower, the Board entered into Executive Session at 9:47pm for 
the purpose of discussing personnel matters. 
The Board exited Executive Session at 10:16pm.      MOTION CARRIED 5:0 
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Kennerknecht, seconded by Vice President Pullis, the Board approved the CSE/CPSE 
Recommendations dated January 9, 2023.       MOTION CARRIED 5:0 
 
Upon a motion by Trustee Mower, seconded by Vice President Pullis, the Board approved the Personnel Report dated January 
9, 2023.           MOTION CARRIED 5:0 
 
Upon a motion by Vice President Pullis, seconded by Trustee Mower, the Board adjourned the January 9, 2023 meeting at 
10:18pm 
           MOTION CARRIED 5:0 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
______________________ 
Jenn Jones; District Clerk 
 
PERSONNEL REPORT; January 9, 2023 
As recommended by Superintendent Brennan Fahey, the Board approve the appointments and accept the resignations, as listed 
in the Personnel Report, noting the salary, certification, and tenure status of all appointees, as appropriate. 
1. Appointments: 

a. Name:  Luke Doxtater 
Position:  Long-term Aide substitute  
Effective Date: January 9, 2023 
Salary:  $120/day 
 

b. Name:  Michael Oldick 
Position:  Night Cleaner 
Effective Date: January 9, 2023 
Salary:  $16/hr 
 

c. Name:  Michael Oldick 
Position:  substitute bus driver 
Effective Date: January 9, 2023 
Salary:  $18/hr 

 
2. Resignations: 

a. Elaine Frasier - bus driver effective January 17, 2023.  Thank you, Ms. Frasier, for your many years of service to the Owen 
D. Young students! 

 
3. Substitutes:  

a. Debra Kuehnle 
b. Diane Wells 
c. Rebecca Wheelock 
d. Sofia Randazzo 
e. Tyler Steele 
f. Wesley Clarke  

































































































Discard List - Room 122
February 13, 2023

Title Publisher
Publish 
Date Author 

Copyright 
Date

Number 
of Books

Our World MacMillan/McGraw-Hill School D 2003 Banks, James A. 2003 23
Our World - Vocab MacMillan/McGraw-Hill 2002 M/Mhss2003 2002 6
Our World - Teachers Edition MacMillan / McGraw-Hill 2002 MacMillan / McGraw-Hill 2002 2
The American Heritage Dictionary of the English 
Language Houghton Mifflin Harcourt 1975 Houghton Mifflin Harcourt 1975 5
Merriam-Webster's Collegiate Dictionary Merriam Webster 1993 Webster 1993 3
Scott, Foresman beginning dictionary Scott, Foresman 1979 Edward Lee Thorndike 1979 1
Webster's intermediate dictionary: A new school 
dictionary Merriam 1977 Merriam 1986 1
Thorndike Barnhart Children's Dictionary Scott Foresman 2000 Scott Foresman 2000 1
Websters Ninth New Collegiate Dictionary Merriam-webster 1991 Merriam-webster 1991 2
A First Thesaurus Golden Books 2001 Wittels, Harriet 2001 1
Student Thesaurus Troll Communications Llc 1989 Ryan, Elizabeth A. 1989 1
Webster's Dictionary of the English Language Thomas Nelson Inc 1988 Thomas Nelson Inc 1988 1
A Student's Dictionary The Dictionary Project 2005 The Dictionary Project 2005 1
Websters New World Dictionary of the American 
Language, College Edition The World Publishing Company 1968 Webster 1968 1
English Grammar and Composition: 2nd Course 
Grade 8 Harcourt School 1982 Warriner, John E. 1982 1
English Grammar and Composition: First Course 
Grade 7 Harcourt College Pub 1982 Warriner, John E. 1982 1
Random House Webster's Dictionary : Second 
Edition Ballantine Books 1996 Webster 1996 2
The Merriam-Webster Dictionary Merriam-Webster Mass Market 2004 Webster 2004 4
Webster's Pocket Dictionary and Thesaurus Nichols 1999 Webster 1999 1
The Merriam Webster Thesaurus Merriam Webster Mass Market 1989 Webster 1989 1
Roget's II Thesaurus: Thumb Index Houghton Mifflin Harcourt 1980 Masters, Robert 1980 2

DIGITS ENHANCED STUDENT COMPANION GRADE 6 Savvas Learning Co 2013 Savvas Learning Co 2013 16





S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 31 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20  12 13 14 15 16 17 18

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31

Dates Students Not in Session

M T W T F S Sept 5: Supt. Conf. Day March 15: Supt. Conf. Day

1 Sept. 6: First day for students April 1-5: Spring Recess

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Sept. 26: Open House 5:30-7pm April 5 - First snow day take back 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 Oct. 9: Columbus Day April 19-21 - ELA assessments

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 Oct. 25: Supt. Conf. Day May 2-4- Math assessments

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 Nov. 10: Veteran's Day ob. May 17 - 1/2 Parent Conf. day

Nov. 20 & 21:  1/2 day Parent Conf. May 24 - off/first snowday takeback

Off/first snow day takeback Nov. 22-24: Thanksgiving May 27: Memorial Day

First day of classes Dec. 22: 1/2 day Supt. Conf. Day June 3: Science Assessment

School Not in Session Dec. 25-Jan 2: Winter Recess June 13-25: Regents exams

Jan. 15: Martin Luther King Day June 19: Juneteenth - no school

Jan. 23-26: Regents/local exams June 25:  1/2 day elem only

Jan. 26: 1/2 Supt. Conf. Day June 30: Commencement @ 1pm

March 8: 1/2 Parent Conf/PD

Feb. 19-23: Midwinter Recess

Half Day dismiss at 11:30am

3-8 assessments

Parent Conferences

Students: 16   Staff: 17

Total Staff Days:  185

Supt. Conference Days

Total Student Days:  181

Regents Examinations

Students:16     Staff: 16

Students: 19   Staff: 20

Students: 16     Staff: 16

June, 2024

Students: 17  Staff: 17

Students:  20     Staff: 20

March, 2024 April, 2024 May, 2024

Students: 21     Staff: 21

Owen D. Young 2023-24 Calendar

September, 2022 October, 2023 November, 2023

Students: 18     Staff: 19 Students: 20     Staff: 21 Students: 18     Staff: 18

January, 2024 February, 2024December, 2023



Student Staff

Sept 18 19

Oct 20 21

Nov 18 18

Dec 16 16

Jan 20 20

Feb 16 16

March 19 20

April 17 17

May 21 21

June 16 17

 181 185

 







































































































































January 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Did not abide with school rules 6 5 2 10 11
Inappropriate behavior 3 1 0 6 5
Disruption of Education 6 7 1 2 2
Disrespectful to Staff Member 5 2 0 2 4
Insubordination 2 1 0 0 3
Missed or skipped class 0 0 0 10 0
Inappropriate Language 0 2 1 0 2
Uncooperative 0 0 2 0 0
Misuse of computer account 3 0 0 0 0
Destruction or damage to school property 0 0 0 0 1
Violation of COVID-19 safety protocols 0 0 0 4 0
Late to Class 0 0 0 0 0
Inappropriate use of cell or electronic device 0 0 0 0 0
Uncooperative 0 0 1 1 0
Left class without permission 0 0 3 1 0
Excessive Talking 4 0 0 0 0
Threats 1 0 0 0 0
Lying 0 0 0 0 1
Profanity or Gestures 0 0 0 0 2
Fighting 0 0 0 0 0
Unexcused absences 0 0 0 0 0
Frequently Late to Class 0 0 0 0 0
Threatening to harm staff 0 0 0 0 0
8. Use, Possession, or Sale of Drugs 0 0 0 0 0
Driving/Riding/Parking infraction 0 0 0 0 1
Inappropriate attire 0 0 0 0 0
Smoking 0 0 0 0 0
Theft 0 1 0 0 0
Inappropriate display of affection 0 0 0 0 0
Pass abuse 0 0 0 0 0
Sexual Harassment 0 0 0 0 0
Skipped or missed detention 0 0 0 0 0
Threatening property of staff 1 0 0 0 0
Total Offenses: 31 19 10 36 32

Discipline Report
January 2019-2023









Owen D. Young CSD; BOE Activity Report
Guidance & CSE/CPSE:  January 2023  / February 2023

Alicia Soper
ODY School Counseling ODY CSE/CPSE

BOCES Career Tech Information Session with 10th
graders- Students learned about CTE programs
available at Herkimer BOCES and selected three
programs to visit (in person visit coming up on March
1st)

Processed re-evaluation consent forms for upcoming
evaluations

Regents Exams, Mid Terms, 2nd Quarter Report Card
Processing and review of honor roll, course failures

Coordinated meetings with highschool students and
ACCES-VR (Vocational Counseling services for
students with disabilities). Assisted students and
families with the application process, and arranged
intake meetings for students and ACCES-VR Vocational
Counselor

Counselor Meeting: HCCC Feb.1 2023 Collaboration
with Herkimer County Counselors, and presentation
from HCCC Deans, Provost and Admissions staff
regarding college programing

Outreach to state ed rep for clarification and
documentation pertaining to special education
continuum of services

Outreach to teachers regarding scheduling and
possible new elective course offerings for the coming
year- Revise and update student course selection
forms

IST Meeting Participation/weekly team meetings: meeting
beginning to be scheduled during the month of October to
discuss student needs

Meetings with students to address
social/emotional/academic concerns

CSE Chairpersons Meeting (zoom meeting)
&Jan 5, 2023 Feb 2, 2023

CFES/Sophomore Symposium planning Committee
meeting Feb. 9 The symposium is a career expo
designed for 10th graders throughout the CFES
Leatherstocking schools and will take place in March
2023.

Shared resources with ODY Special Education teachers
and related service providers regarding programs and
services during the 2022-2023 School year

CFES Mentor Training/activity day with Richfield
Springs CFES students and advisors. ODY’s peer
mentors learned new skills and activities to bring to
their classroom mentoring sessions. Topics included
CFES Essential Skills, Leadership and mentoring
skills. We currently have 5-10 students working with
elementary classrooms and students in a peer
mentoring capacity.

Weekly IEP Counseling with Elementary students

Clark Foundation Scholarships- follow up with
students completing applications/submitted school
guidance data.

Review of current sped students and preparing
recommendations for the 2023-2024 school year

Classroom Activity with Mrs. Tucker’s 5th grade
students…See description below*

Scheduled CSE meetings to review results of recent
evaluations/Approaching Annual Review Meeting
season



* Activity/lesson with Mrs. Tucker and the 5th grade class.

I shared with Mrs. Tucker that I have a close family friend from the Middle East State of
Palestine, and this friend has a daughter in 5th grade. She attends a dual language
school…The Modern English School, located in the West Bank city of Nablus. Students at this
school learn in their native language, Arabic as well as English. I realized that both Mrs.
Tucker’s class and the 5th grade students in Palestine were both learning public speaking skills
and how to present information in the form of a persuasive speech or “Elevator Speech”. The
students at the Modern English School presented their sales pitch presentations in English and
were filmed by the teacher, and the class video was posted to Youtube…I contacted the teacher
at the Modern English School for permission to to share the videos with the 5th graders at ODY,
and she was fully supportive of this activity! On February 7th I presented a short lesson with
Mrs. Tucker to “introduce” our 5th graders to the 5th graders who attend The Modern English
School. We discussed time-zones (a recent classroom topic), speaking and learning language,
and how it feels to do a presentation in front of classmates. ODY 5th graders watched a short
video clip of the students at The Modern English School giving their presentation. Students
seemed to enjoy the lesson and were excited to learn that a 5th grade class in a different time
zone was doing the same assignment! ODY students were impressed with the students' English
speaking skills, and we talked about what they liked about the presentations and we looked at
The Modern English School Website and photos of the school.

Coming up!

● Course Selection-grades 6-11!
● CFES Sophomore Symposium @ the Otesaga- March 22-23rd
● Middle School event at SUNY Cobleskill? Waiting on more details from the college.
● Herkimer BOCES Visit 3/1/2023



Owen D. Young CSD BOE Activity Report
Assistant Principal / Athletic Director

December 2022
Cory Pike

Athletic Director
● Boys Basketball still playing. Last round of the TLV tournament. Sectional seeding 2/15
● Varsity Volleyball ended with an 8-8 record. Hosted Sectional game on 2/8

○ Reflection/Preparation with coaches will be on going
● Sign ups on going for Spring sports

○ Spring sports will be Softball/Baseball/Track & Field/Golf
○ All are combined with Richfield
○ We are reinstating a Golf team through CSC/Section 3

● Spring Sign Up Numbers
○ Modified Baseball - 13
○ Varsity Baseball - 15
○ Modified Softball - 24
○ Varsity Softball - 21
○ Track & Field - 40
○ Golf - 15 9-12th grade (we will offer a club to coincide for 7/8th graders)

● Starting to plan the sports banquet which will be hosted by ODY this year
○ Looking into local venues that could handle the size of the banquet

Assistant Principal
● Review for ELA program (Into Reading or Wonders)

○ Shared resources with teachers and gathering samples from publisher
● CBT Simulation was conducted on January 17th for grades 3rd-8th

○ The simulation is a great practice for proctors and students
○ Simulation tests our network capacities and server capacities on the State end.
○ Continued practice with provided resources occurring in class

● New Title/Role: Diversity/Equity/Inclusion Coordinator for NYSED
● January ELA Regents and Mid-Terms
● Coordinating with BOCES for a virtual book reading and meet the author

○ A Day to be Brave Live Book Tour (K-5th grade classes)
● Meeting with Mr. Fahey/Sam/Oleg regarding tech/curriculum purchases for next year
● Superintendent’s Days planning and coordinating

○ Feb 3rd Presenters: Kellie Maxwell: Staff Resiliency & BOCES: Co-teaching



○ Feb 10th Presenters: BOCES (Kelly Cave: Co-teaching and program for
beginning teachers) and collaboration time for teachers.

○ March 10th: Data Collection and Analyzing (with Sam:RIC)
○ March 17th: Continued Data Analyses and Curriculum Mapping Modification and

Adjustments per Data (with Sam:RIC)
● Sam will also be presenting/sharing Computer Science and Digital

Fluency Standards.
● Data meeting topics

○ STAR phonics usage, Report Card discussions, MobyMax usage
● Day to day support for teachers and students
● Disciplinary concerns and write-ups
● Coordinating with Guidance and Mrs. Dieffenbacher in regard to student needs

Upcoming
● Monthly AD meetings
● Registering students for Student Athlete Leadership Conference
● Continued conversations with Richfield regarding the future of combinations.
● Prep/Planning regarding Sports Banquet
● Spring Sports planning
● CBT (3-8 Computer Based Testing Prep/Setup)
● Planning for Superintendent’s Days, Faculty Meetings and Data Meetings

○ Next faculty meetings: PBIS Coordinator Kellie Maxwell regarding de-escalation,
boundaries, power struggles, student interaction,etc.

● Continue Announced Observations (finishing up first round)



Owen D. Young CSD; BOE Activity Report
IT Department
February 2023
Oleg Verenich

Student Updates
Addressed Device Repair Requests
Supported Student Password Resets

Teacher Updates
Created New Teacher Accounts
Supported Teacher Password Resets
Supported Instructional Software
Supported ClassLink Launchpad for Students and Teachers

Classroom Updates
Excised Antiquated Equipment

District Updates
Supported Athletics Streaming



Owen D. Young CSD;
BOE Activity Report

Facilities - Robert Walker
January  2023

● Monthly fire extinguisher Check/ Extinguishers annual inspect & Charge\
● Plow and salt as needed
● Discuss Building controls with Day Automation
● Start new Cleaner and Train
● Coordinate with contractors for site visits Capital Project
● Zoom meeting with architect and CM on bids and Alternates
● Fire alarm Inspection
● DAy Automation fix PA system
● Fix teacherage Boiler -No heat
● Receive New Scorers Table
● Start to Clean Boiler room For upcoming Project
● Change Locker Combinations 1954 hall
● Receive Quote for replacement lockers
● Receive quote for Electrical receptacles
● Fix Gym PA system
● Assemble weight room equipment
● Elevator inspection
● Snow blower fixed & serviced
● Service Unit Ventilators- oil bearings, clean &  change filters
● Assemble new chair racks
●



N
u

m
be

r 
of

 B
oo

ks

0

500

1000

1500

2000

Returns
Loans

Renewals

Daily Average
Total

2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023

Library Usage for the Months of December & January



Your Kids, Your BOCES Issue No. 2: 
January 2023



Your Kids, Your BOCES
Table of Contents

Click on any of the listings below to jump directly to that page.

 Dedication in loving memory to Michael Clements............................Page 3

 A note from BOCES District Superintendent Sandra Sherwood.........Page 4

 Herkimer BOCES Board of Education recognitions, oaths of office....Page 5

 Automotive Technology graduate featured 
    in 1st video episode of CTE Alumni Series........................................Page 6

 Pathways Academy students make 
    volleyball stand for Proctor teams......................................................Page 6

 New CNC lathe puts the ‘advanced’ 
    in BOCES Advanced Manufacturing program................................Pages 7-8

 Welding students tour Feldmeier 
    facility as part of potential career path.........................................Pages 9-10

 A BOCES-to-school connection.........................................................Page 10

 Building Construction students 
    learn about apprenticeship opportunities.........................................Page 11

 Visual Communications student’s 
    pin design a finalist in regional contest............................................Page 11

1 2

Click on any of the listings below to jump directly to that page.

 ACIE’s Rising Seniors Internship Program 
    helps Herkimer senior determine career path..................................Page 12

 Herkimer BOCES ceremony honors veterans, 
    provides positive experience for students........................................Page 13

 VP-TECH students support Stuff the Bus.........................................Page 14

 VP-TECH students tour Gehring-Tricot............................................Page 14

 Herkimer BOCES Safety Services welcome 
    Donald Maxwell as school facilities advisor.....................................Page 15

 Mary Kline recognized with Genesis Group 
    Outstanding Educator Award............................................................Page 16

 Capital project and facilities plans advancing............................Pages 17-20

 More Herkimer BOCES news online..........................................Pages 21-22

Table of Contents continued...



3 4

This issue of “Your Kids, Your BOCES”
is dedicated in loving memory 

to Michael Clements

Mike Clements, our beloved Herkimer BOCES Board of Education president and member Mike Clements, our beloved Herkimer BOCES Board of Education president and member 
of the Frankfort-Schuyler Board of Education, will be remembered for his strong advocacy of the Frankfort-Schuyler Board of Education, will be remembered for his strong advocacy 
for students and the great pride he had in the work that we do at Herkimer BOCES, as well for students and the great pride he had in the work that we do at Herkimer BOCES, as well 
as the work in Frankfort-Schuyler. Mike was a tremendous leader with the loving heart of a as the work in Frankfort-Schuyler. Mike was a tremendous leader with the loving heart of a 
teddy bear.  We will all miss his humor, his smile, his kind way of handling difficult situations teddy bear.  We will all miss his humor, his smile, his kind way of handling difficult situations 

and his tremendous pride in the work we all do.and his tremendous pride in the work we all do.

We are so grateful for the time he shared with us and the ways that he helped to build a We are so grateful for the time he shared with us and the ways that he helped to build a 
better tomorrow for all children in this region. better tomorrow for all children in this region. 

Mike was an excellent leader, worker and friend – he will be missed tremendously by all. Mike was an excellent leader, worker and friend – he will be missed tremendously by all. 

A note from Herkimer BOCES District Superintendent Sandra Sherwood...
Dear board members in the 
Herkimer BOCES region, 

January brings all the excitement 
and promise of a new year while also 
representing the challenges of building new 
budgets and calendars for the next school 
year! I look forward to coming out to all 
your districts to present the BOCES 
administrative budget and the tentative 
capital budget to your boards. You will note 
that the capital budget shows a tremendous 
increase because the first payment for the 
capital project will be due in the 2023-
2024 school year. On that front, the 
architects and engineers are completing 
the building condition survey, which is 
the baseline needed for the project to be 
submitted to the New York State Education 
Department. Thank you to all who have 
agreed to be on the BOCES Facilities 
Committee – they met once to walk 
through the buildings with the architects 
and engineers and will be meeting again to 
review the BCS, as this helps with the 
prioritization of the parts of the project.

Aside from these big projects, it is 
exciting to see the work beginning on the 
new space at 420 E. German St. that will 
house the BOCES Instructional Support 
Services as well as most of our adult 
programs. Not only will this new facility 
provide state of the art presentation tools 
and the ability to serve more people, but 
this will also free up space at both the 
WEB and Remington in order to serve more 
P-12 students based on district requests. 
Let’s hope that the teacher shortage 
doesn’t continue so that we can staff the 
classes that are needed.

Winter may seem long and dreary, but 
keep in mind the beauty of the four seasons 
and that every snowflake is different… just 
like all the students 
we serve. Thank you 
for your continued 
support and all you do 
for our students and 
our communities.

-Sandy



5 6

At the January 2023 meeting, board member Holly Pullis 

was sworn in as the new Herkimer BOCES board president 

by Herkimer BOCES District Clerk Shawn Maxson to fill the 

position left vacant after Michael Clements passed away. 

Herkimer BOCES Board of Education 
recognitions, oaths of office

At the November 2022 meeting, form
er Board President 

Thomas Shypski was honored for ser
ving as president for 

three yea
rs (from

 2019-2022) and was presented with a 

plaque b
y then-Board President Michael Clements.

During the November 2022 meeting, Michele Szarek was 
sworn into the seat on the Herkimer BOCES Board of 

Education representing Poland Central School District by 
Herkimer BOCES District Clerk Shawn Maxson.

At the January 2023 meeting, board member Ronald 

Loiacono was sworn in as the board’s new vice president  

by District Clerk Shawn Maxson, after form
er Vice 

President Holly Pullis was elected board president.

Herkimer BOCES is happy to 
introduce the first episode of our CTE 
Alumni Series – featuring Herkimer 
BOCES 2022 Automotive Technology 
graduate Alexia Jaiken, who started 
working as a mechanic at Mohawk 
Motors right after graduation!

We’re proud to call Jaiken one of  
our Herkimer BOCES alumni!

She is also a graduate of Dolgeville 
Central School District.

You can view the video on our website, 
YouTube, Facebook, Instagram or Twitter 
– or by clicking here.

Automotive Technology graduate featured 
in 1st video episode of CTE Alumni Series

Herkimer BOCES 2022 Automotive Technology graduate 

Alexia Jaiken works on a vehicle at Mohawk Motors, 

where she gained employment as a mechanic right after 

high school. Click here to view the video featuring her.

Students in Herkimer BOCES 
Pathways Academy Trade Industries 
teacher 
Adam Spatto’s class made a volleyball  
stand for the Thomas R. Proctor High 
School girls varsity volleyball team,  
which is coached by Herkimer BOCES 
teacher Glenn Manning.

In volleyball, you are required to have  
two game balls ready to use, and the  
stand will be used to hold the game  
balls for the girls varsity and junior 
varsity teams - and for boys teams if 
they’re added in the future.

Pathways Academy students make volleyball 
stand for Proctor teams

Herkimer BOCES Pathways Academy Trade Industries 

students made this volleyball st
and for the girls varsity

 and 

junior varsity tea
ms at Thomas R. Proctor High School.

To view theHerkimer BOCESBoard of Educationminutes online,click here.

https://www.herkimer-boces.org/documents/information/board-of-education/agendas-and-minutes/2022-2023-meeting-minutes/369049
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2XCuL7uy6q8
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2XCuL7uy6q8
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2XCuL7uy6q8


Students in the Herkimer BOCES 
Advanced Manufacturing program have 
already been creating chess sets with the 
Haas Automation computer numerical 
control lathe the program added just before 
the end of 2022.

“We jumped into a real project as soon 
as we got the machine running,” Advanced 
Manufacturing instructor Peter Stone said.

Advanced Manufacturing students are 
gaining experience with how to program and 
operate the CNC lathe and conduct quality 
assurance checks on the items they develop.

“It adds capabilities that are unbelievable,” 
Stone said. We’re advanced now.”

Students are using the machine to not only 
create the chess pieces themselves, but also 
to make tools and fixtures they are using in 
the process – such as 
clamps, holders and 
weights.

The control 
panel for the Haas 
Automation CNC 
lathe is the same 
control panel used 
on much larger 
Haas machines, so 
students would 
be able to operate 
those machines 
in a job setting, 
Stone said. The  

 
CNC lathe also 

uses G-Code, so the programming they are 
learning could also be used on other brand 
machines that use G-Code with just some 
tweaks, he said.

“The jewel of 
the shop is this 
machine,” he said.

 Advanced 
Manufacturing 
students are  
making a total of 
50 chess sets. Some 
of the sets will be 
gifts to Herkimer 
BOCES Board of 
Education members, 
and others will be 
sold for a fundraiser. 

New CNC lathe puts the ‘advanced’ in BOCES 
Advanced Manufacturing program

Herkimer BOCES Advanced Manufacturing program senior 

Cole Dowling, of Central Valley, explains how the Haas 

Automation CNC lathe he’s standing next to works. Dowling 

is also in the Herkimer BOCES VP-TECH program.

Stone hopes to raise funds to take 
Advanced Manufacturing students to 
the Eastec manufacturing trade show 
in Massachusetts next year. If interested 
in purchasing a chess set to support the 
fundraiser, contact Stone at Herkimer 
BOCES at 315-867-3006.

The next project Stone has in mind for 
using the CNC lathe is creating trophies for 
the 20th annual Herkimer Region College 
and Career Scholarship Foundation Golf 
Tournament, which takes place on Aug. 14 
at the Cedar Lake Club in Clayville.

During class on Thursday, Jan. 26, 
Advanced Manufacturing seniors worked 
on the chess sets. All of the seniors in the 
program are also VP-TECH students. 

Advanced Manufacturing senior Cole 
Dowling, of Central Valley Central School 
District, explained how the CNC lathe works, 
how it cuts the shape of the chess pieces, how 
he operates the control panel and how he runs 
the machine on slow the first time he uses it 
each day to make sure it’s working properly, 
before speeding it up.

“I love it,” Dowling said, of getting to 
work with the CNC lathe in class. “What I 
really like the most about it is learning 
to do many different things. We have 
the opportunity to learn many skills for 
this class – not just how to operate but to 
program the machine.”

Advanced Manufacturing senior MK 
David, of Dolgeville Central School District, 
explained how students conduct quality 
assurance on the items created with the CNC 
lathe. Students measure the pieces to make  

 

sure they are within the 
guidelines, and if anything is off, they identify 
that it needs to be fixed, David said.

Students benefit from learning various 
aspects of the process in a professional 
environment, David said.

“It was a big change,” they said. “We’re given 
so much responsibility here, and our teacher, 
Mr. Stone, has been in the workforce, so he’s 
more like a boss than a teacher sometimes. 
I’m really grateful for the experience of getting 
to do things like this.”

7 8

Herkimer BOCES Advanced Manufacturing instructor Peter 

Stone shows how some of the tools and fixtures students 

created in class using a Haas Automation CNC lathe are 

utilized to help put materials together to make chess sets.

From left, Herkimer BOCES Advanced Manufacturing 

program and VP-TECH seniors MK David, of Dolgeville; 

Iesha Deuvel, of Herkimer, and Ariana Ellis, of Central 

Valley, conduct quality assurance work in class.

An in-progress ch
ess set bein

g created by 

Herkimer BOCES Advanced Manufacturing program 

students is displayed in class on Thursday, Jan. 26.



Herkimer BOCES Welding and Metal 
Fabrication Technology program seniors 
took a tour this school year of the Feldmeier 
Equipment facility at 245 Riverside 
Industrial Parkway in Little Falls.

The tour served not only as a way to learn 
more about a local business, but also as an 
introduction to a place where the students 
will be doing a work-study internship 
program in April 2023. Students also could 
have the opportunity to work professionally 
at Feldmeier after graduation.

Students saw during the tour that 
Feldmeier employs many Herkimer BOCES 
alumni – including a few from just the last 
three graduating classes, Herkimer BOCES 
Welding instructor Mason Fisher said.

“It’s great for the 
students,” he said. “They 
can see a possible path 
for themselves through 
former students working 
there and enjoying it. It 
is work, but it is a great 
opportunity right in our 
own backyard.”

The Welding program’s 
tour took place on 
Oct. 6 with Feldmeier 
Equipment Plant 
Manager Elroy Moore. 
Students got to see welding practices being 
put to work, robotic machines, several-

hundred-thousand-gallon tanks and more.

In class, students practice various welding 
skills or work on small project, but the tour 

allowed students 
to see how various 
aspects of welding 
come together as 
part of a business, 
Fisher said.

“They enjoyed it,” 
Fisher said. “It was 
good for them to 
see everything we 
do kind of put into 
fruition.”

Feldmeier is one 
of the largest manufacturers of stainless steel 
tanks in the country and ships tanks all across 
the world. The company employs several 

Welding students tour Feldmeier facility as 
part of potential career path

Herkimer BOCES Welding students pose with 
Welding instructor Mason Fisher and Feldmeier 
Equipment Plant Manager Elroy Moore during 
a tour of Feldmeier Equipment in Little Falls.

hundred welders and fabricators all around 
the country and nearly 100 welders in Little 
Falls, Fisher said.

The large size of the facility, the tanks and 
the overall operation can be intimidating for 
students to see, but taking the tour helps 
alleviate those concerns before the internship 
opportunity, Fisher said.

Senior students in the Herkimer BOCES 
Welding program are encouraged to attend 
the work-study program at Feldmeier for a 
week or two in April each year. During the 
internship experience, students go through 
a safety training and work directly with the 
Feldmeier crew, Fisher said.

“It opens up that employment avenue,” 
Fisher said. “It opens up the door where they 
have that line of communication already 
established, and Feldmeier will hire them 
right out of high school.”

9 10

Visual Communications Media Arts 
students recently designed and pressed 
shirts for a Mount Markham High School 
Drama Club play called “The Play That 
Goes Wrong.”

The play took place on Dec. 9 and 10.

As seen in the photo to the right, Mount 
Markham seniors Leah Coffin and Jacob 
Patterson pressed shirts for the play.

Leah Coffin also worked on the design 
during her Visual Communications Media 
Arts class.

A BOCES-to-school connection

Mount Markham students Leah Coffin and Jacob Patterson 

press shirts for a Mount Markham Drama Club show  

called “The Play That Goes Wrong.”



Students in the Herkimer BOCES Building 
Construction class with instructor John 
Martin recently learned about the career 
possibilities that await them once they 
complete the program.

Representatives from the North Atlantic 
States Regional Council of Carpenters 
presented to students about the benefits of 
entering their apprenticeship program. 

Representatives explained the five-year paid 
apprenticeship program that allows students 
to earn an associate degree while learning the 
skills of the carpentry trade. 

The representatives said that at the end of 
the five-year apprenticeship program, students 
will be in a position to make a minimum of 
$101,000 per year.

Building Construction students learn about 
apprenticeship opportunities

It was once said, “Be brave. Take risks. 
Nothing can substitute experience.” That’s 
exactly what Herkimer Jr./Sr. High School 
senior Izabella Vredenburg did this past 
summer, through the School to Careers 
Rising Seniors Internship Program, 
a subsidiary of the Advanced Career 
Immersion Experience (ACIE). For as long 
as Vredenburg can remember, she’s wanted 
to pursue a career in the medical field, but 
exactly which career path was something 
that needed to be explored. 

With science being the crucial foundation 
of medicine, Vredenburg decided that 
research was going to begin her internship 
journey. That’s where Masonic Medical 
Research Institute or MMRI came into the 
picture and where she spent the entire 
month of August: all day long, Monday-
Friday. This experience was not done 
in vain, and all internship experiences, 
whether good or bad, prove to be beneficial 
in many ways. Vredenburg’s excitement 
grew with each day and each scientific 
procedure – such as watching and assisting 
in surgeries on lab animals to help them and 
advance in medicine. Using microscopes 
to image different tissues and computer 
programs to measure abnormalities were also 
common tasks for Vredenburg’s hands-on 
internship. Although this experience was truly 
amazing, Vredenburg has set her goals further 
than the laboratory and would like to pursue 
a career as a medical doctor.  

ACIE’s Rising Seniors Internship Program 
helps Herkimer senior determine career path

Herkimer Jr./Sr. High School senior Izabella Vredenburg 
completed an internship over the summer with 
Masonic Medical Research Institute through the  

Herkimer BOCES Rising Seniors Internship Program.  

Dr. Jason McCarthy and Dr. Chase Kessinger, 

Masonic Medical Research Institute scientists 

and internship mentors.

11 12

Herkimer BOCES Visual 
Communications Media Arts student 
Gianni Luce created a pin design that is 
a finalist in the SkillsUSA regional pin 
contest.

Luce, a senior from Frankfort-
Schuyler Central School District, has 
been learning about design in the Visual 
Communications Media Arts program with 
instructor Melinda Maycock.

Luce’s design is pictured to the right.

Visual Communications student’s pin design 
a finalist in regional contest



13 14

Herkimer BOCES Special Programs 
hosted a Veterans Day Ceremony for 
local veterans and staff members who 
are veterans on Thursday, Nov. 10, at the 
William E. Busacker Complex in Herkimer.

At the end of a patriotic ceremony that 
included many students reading messages 
to veterans on stage along with readings 
and videos for each branch of the military, 
Herkimer BOCES Supervisor of Special 
Education Tim Johnston delivered a closing 
message to veterans. 

“Thank you for your service,” Johnston said. 
“Thank you for coming today to celebrate 
with us as we celebrate you.”

The event was just the second Herkimer 
BOCES Special Programs Veterans Day 
Ceremony. It was previously started before 
COVID-19 and brought back for the first 
time this year. Johnston said the teachers and 
staff put in some amazing work in preparing 
students for the opportunities presented by 
the event.

In addition to celebrating veterans 
and thanking them for their service, the 
ceremony was also held to provide an 
experience for Special Programs students 
similar to what students in school districts 
have with their Veterans Day events, 
Johnston said. Having the students present 
readings on stage gives them public 
speaking experience and an equal chance to 
participate in thanking veterans, he said.

Herkimer BOCES ceremony honors veterans, 
provides positive experience for students

Herkimer BOCES Special Programs students who presented 

on stage during the Veterans Day Ceremony in November 

pose for a photo at the William E. Busacker Complex.

Herkimer BOCES Special Programs students in teacher 
Crystal Rey’s class sing a song for veterans on stage 
during the Veterans Day Ceremony in November at the William E. Busacker Complex.

Students in the Valley Pathways in 
Technology Early College High School 
at Herkimer BOCES participated in 
donating to Stuff the Bus during the 2022 
holiday season.

The VP-TECH Student Council 
spearheaded the effort to support Stuff the 
Bus this year. The students wanted to help 
provide a great holiday season for kids 
within our community.

Stuff the Bus is an annual toy drive 
created to help the less fortunate in the 
Mohawk Valley have a happy holiday season 
despite any financial circumstances their 
families might have.

It was started in 2008 by Roser 
Communications Network and its stations: 
97.9/105.5 KISS FM, BUG Country 99.7 and 
101.1 and TALK! 100.7 in conjunction with 
WKTV News Channel 2. Over the last 15  

years, 
more than 100,000 toys 

have been collected. Every one of those toys 
has stayed in the Mohawk Valley and has been 
given to kids in Oneida, Herkimer, Madison, 
Otsego, Fulton and Montgomery counties.

VP-TECH students support Stuff the Bus

VP-TECH students help load donated items for 

Stuff the Bus, when the bus visited the Herkimer BOCES 

William E. Busacker Complex to pick up the items.

VP-TECH students tour Gehring-Tricot
The whole VP-TECH program 

participated in a business tour on Nov. 18, 
2022, at Gehring-Tricot Corp.

Students were able to visit both the 
Dolgeville and St. Johnsville manufacturing 
facilities and learned about all areas of the 
operations there.

Gehring-Tricot is a locally owned and 
operated business that develops and 
produces textiles.

Gehring-Tricot Corp. Vice President of Manufacturing 

Gary Farquhar Jr. looks into a dyeing tank while giving 

a different tour of the Dolgeville facility in 2020.



15 16

Herkimer BOCES Director of Adult, Early 
Childhood and Outreach Education Mary 
Kline recently received an Outstanding 
Educator Award at the Genesis Group’s annual 
Celebration of Education.

As of this month, Kline has been at 
Herkimer BOCES for 44 years and nears her 
retirement in June. She recently reflected 
on going to college with plans to become a 
reading teacher, starting out doing substitute 
teaching, working as a teacher aide, joining 
Herkimer BOCES as a migrant tutor in 
January 1979, becoming the migrant 
coordinator and taking on additional 
administrative roles over the years.

Kline, who also was a recipient of the School 
Administrators Association of New York State 
Leadership and Support Award in 2016, 
said she is happy with the path her career 
took. She has enjoyed the job because her 
involvement with multiple programs provided 
her with a variety of experiences and kept 
each day feeling unique.

“You have so many different programs to 
work with, and they all help people – which 
I like,” she said. “And I’ve worked with 
wonderful staff – some of them worked with 
me for more than 30 years.”

Herkimer BOCES Director of Special 
Education and Alternative Education Roberta 
Matthews and Herkimer BOCES Assistant 
Superintendent of Instructional Services Kati 
Ferguson nominated Kline for the award for 
her leadership and devotion.

“Her title does not capture 
the enormity of her role at Herkimer BOCES 
and how valuable she is in supporting not 
only the students of the Herkimer region 
but also students in over 14 New York state 
counties,” Matthews and Ferguson wrote in 
the nomination letter. “Mary has implemented 
countless new initiatives and educational 
programs for our region, including a very 
successful migrant education program, 
prekindergarten programs housed in five 
school districts, support services for students 
who are homeless, adult and continuing 
education programming and a nursing 
preparation program.”

Kline said she enjoyed the awards ceremony 
because she was joined by family and 
supporters from Herkimer BOCES.

Mary Kline recognized with Genesis Group 
Outstanding Educator Award

Herkimer BOCES Director of Adult, Early Childhood and 
Outreach Education Mary Kline receives an Outstanding 

Educator Award from Maria Smith, co-chair of the Genesis 
Group Education Committee. Click here to view a video.

Herkimer BOCES Safety Services recently 
created a new school facilities advisor position 
to help keep schools in the region safer.

Donald Maxwell, of Fairfield, started as 
school safety advisor on Tuesday, Jan. 24. 

“I’m looking forward to working with the 
local schools and supporting them in the 
maintenance and facilities challenges that 
schools deal with,” Maxwell said.

Maxwell comes to the Herkimer BOCES 
Safety Services with a background working 
with various local maintenance departments 
and driving buses for West Canada Valley 
Central School District.

Maxwell will be working with component 
districts’ maintenance crews with inspections, 
trainings and walkthroughs. He will also 
focus on troubleshooting facilities issues to 
make sure the buildings are safe for students 
and staff, Herkimer BOCES Safety Services 
Coordinator Adam Hutchinson said.

“This gives maintenance and facilities staff in 
districts a point of contact and a specialist in 
terms of the rules and regulations they have to 
face,” Hutchinson said.

Maxwell started out on his first day by 
visiting BOCES facilities and going through 
some required trainings.

“Everything has been going well,” Maxwell 
said. “I’m excited to get out and visit the 
schools and let them know I’m here to help.”

Herkimer BOCES Safety Services welcome 
Donald Maxwell as school facilities advisor

Donald Maxwell joined the Herkimer BOCES Safety Services on Tuesday, Jan. 24, in the newly created school facilities advisor position.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ccjWpmC5Km4
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ccjWpmC5Km4


17 18

Capital project and facilities work is 
advancing on multiple fronts to ensure safe 
and secure classroom spaces for Herkimer 
BOCES students for years to come.

Changes are in the works for the Herkimer 
BOCES William E. Busacker Complex at 
352 Gros Blvd. in Herkimer, the Herkimer 
BOCES Remington Educational Complex 
at 77 E. North St. in Ilion and the Arc 
Herkimer Business Park building at 420 
E. German St. in Herkimer that Herkimer 
BOCES rents space in.

Overall, the projects are expected to result 
in at least six new classrooms and improved 
essential systems at the facilities.

The following are updates about the various 
facilities work taking place:

Capital project

The school boards of all 10 Herkimer 
BOCES component school districts voted in 
September 2022 to approve a $50 million 
capital project for the WEB Complex and 
Remington Educational Complex.

“For the WEB, this is all about health, safety 
and life systems and bringing them up to code 
and modernizing them,” Herkimer BOCES 
Assistant Superintendent for Administrative 
Services James Picolla said. “Most of what we 
are doing deals with the safety and security of 
students and staff – and life systems.”

Examples of the systems and updates  
that are planned include fire alarms,  
clocks, the public address (PA) system, 

the kitchen and heating, ventilation and 
air conditioning (HVAC).

Although the project is still in the 
design phase, the anticipated plan for the 
WEB Complex also includes turning the 
Leatherstocking Conference Rooms and the 
offices and rooms on one side of the nearby 
hallway into classrooms.

At Remington, all of the same health, safety 
and life systems will be updated, but less 
work is required. For example, the HVAC 
work at the WEB Complex will be a total 
rebuild, but at Remington there are just some 
rooms that need updates.

Additional work at Remington will be 
conducted to make the former elementary 
school more suitable for high school students 
– including some programmatic updates such 
as a new science lab and updating classrooms 
for older students.

Capital project and facilities plans advancing

WEB Complex.

The Building 
Condition Survey 
(BCS) for each 
building has 
been completed 
by architects 
and engineers, 
Picolla said. 
Herkimer BOCES 
representatives 
will meet with 
the architects 
and engineers in 
February to review 
the surveys before 
submitting them to 
the New York State Education Department 
(NYSED). The BCS is conducted every five 
years, and it was helpful that it fell on this 
year to assist with capital project planning, 
Picolla said.

Capital project contracts are in development 
with King + King Architects to be the 
architects and 
C&S Construction 
Management to be 
the construction 
management firm, 
Picolla said. 

The BOCES team 
is in preliminary 
conversations about 
refining the needs 
assessment and 
adjusting design 
plans, he said.

The project is 
planned to be 

completed through 
two phases.

The Phase One 
timeline includes 
submission to 
NYSED in June 
2023, construction 
taking place from 
January 2024 
through September 
2025 and the phase 
closing out in 
December 2025. 

The Phase 
Two timeline 

includes submission to SED in January 2025, 
construction taking place from January 2026 
to September 2027 and the phase closing out 
in December 2027.

Remington exterior doors

Three exterior doors at the Remington 
Educational Complex are in need 

of repair and were 
originally in the 
capital project 
plans, but were 
pulled out of the 
capital project 
because they need 
to be repaired 
sooner than would 
be possible through 
the capital project, 
Picolla said.

continued on 
the next page...

German Street building.

Remington Educational Complex.



19 20

The cost of repairing the doors will be 
covered by money that was budgeted for lease 
payments at German Street that were expected 
to begin six months earlier than they are. That 
funding will more than cover the cost of the 
door repairs, Picolla said. 

The design plan for the door repairs has 
been completed and submitted to NYSED, 
and Herkimer BOCES is waiting for approval. 
Picolla also said he was told there is also a 
20-week lead time 
on construction 
materials.

It’s anticipated 
that BOCES will 
be under contract 
for the work on the 
doors before the end 
of June 2023 and 
that construction 
will be completed  
in fall 2023,  
Picolla said.

Facilities 
Committee

The new Herkimer 
BOCES Facilities Committee, primarily made 
up of component school board members, met 
for the first time on Nov. 28, 2022. Committee 
members conducted walk-throughs of the 
WEB Complex and Remington Educational 
Complex with architects, engineers and 
construction management.

Aspects of the plans and designs for the 

capital project were discussed during the 
walk-throughs, and committee members 
began identifying other facilities needs in  
the buildings. 

The need for the $50 million capital project 
arose because BOCES has not completed 
smaller annual projects to maintain its 
buildings. Districts have the ability to conduct 
capital outlay projects, but a BOCES does 
not have that option. BOCES, however, does 

have a mechanism 
to conduct smaller 
projects through 
program and 
facilities work. In 
the past, BOCES 
was not exercising 
this option in order 
to help maintain 
lower tuition costs.  
Regular facilities 
updates weren’t 
being conducted, 
Picolla said.

Coming out of 
the planning for 
the capital project 

and the creation of the Facilities Committee, 
there seems to be a consensus and recognition 
that moving forward it would be more cost 
effective if BOCES conducts smaller facilities 
projects on a regular basis, Picolla said. 

Beginning with next school year, funding 
will be budgeted for these smaller projects, 
and they are now part of long-term facilities 
planning, he said.

Capital project and facilities plans advancing continued... Facilities Committee members have already 
been identifying ideas for smaller projects – 
such as improvements at the WEB Complex 
to exterior drainage, the playgrounds and 
acoustics in the lobby, 
Picolla said.

“I’m also hoping 
and anticipating 
that the Facilities 
Committee will 
work in tandem 
with programmatic 
developments that 
are being made 
going forward,”  
he said.

For example, as the 
nation shifts toward 
electric automobiles, 
if the Automotive 
Technology program 
needs to be adjusted 
to meet new needs, the Facilities Committee 
could review and make recommendations 
about related facilities updates, Picolla said.

The next Facilities Committee meeting will 
include reviewing the Building Condition 
Surveys and continuing to identify smaller 
projects. As the capital project advances, 
committee members also will help review and 
prioritize outstanding aspects of the project, 
with final decisions being made by the 
Herkimer BOCES Board of Education.

German Street

At German Street, in addition to the 
Business Office and administrative offices 

Herkimer BOCES has on the third floor, other 
Herkimer BOCES programs and operations 
will soon be moving to the second floor. 
These include Instructional Support Services, 

the Adult Practical 
Nursing Program, 
the Copy Center 
and operations 
and maintenance 
functions.

Herkimer BOCES 
signed a 10-year 
lease with Arc 
Herkimer that 
covers both floors, 
and the lease has 
an option for 
Herkimer BOCES 
to extend it for 
another 10 years.

Arc Herkimer 
began construction on the second floor  

on Jan. 16 to alter the space to fit what 
Herkimer BOCES needs it for. It’s anticipated 
that construction will be complete in April 
and that the Herkimer BOCES programs  
and operations moving there will be able to 
take occupancy in April or May if all goes 
well, Picolla said.

The relocation of programs and offices 
that are currently at the WEB Complex 
and Remington Educational Complex to 
German Street will assist with the creation of 
more classroom space to fit the demand for 
more BOCES classrooms for students from 
component school districts.

This WEB Complex playground is one 
area identified by the Facilities Committee 

for a future construction project.

This is the “before” picture of the Herkimer BOCES location 

on the second floor of 420 E. German St. in Herkimer.  

Arc Herkimer began construction here on Jan. 16, 

and the work is expected to be completed in April..



More Herkimer BOCES news online...

21 22

Click on any of the photos in this section 
to view the full stories online.

Pathways Academy students receive awards, 

family support in return to in-person ceremony.

CTE seniors ben
efiting from

 ‘Diversity
, Equity 

and Inclusion in the Workplace’ workshops.

READiTEC students learn culinary skills, 

develop business plans.

VP-TECH students develop soft skills 

during Engineering Wars.

Students at 2022 Herkimer County Youth Summit focus on ‘building a better tomorrow.’ Herkimer BOCES announces 1st quarter 

CTE high honor roll and honor roll.

Local school DASA coordinators get 
‘refresher’ at Safety Services workshop. Pathways Academy gets in holiday spirit 

with wall-decorating contest.

VP-TECH announces first quarter high honor roll and honor roll. Students gain hands-on experience through 

Herkimer BOCES Cosmetology clinic.

Herkimer BOCES Adult Practical Nursing Program 
student Rebecca Chol, who immigrated to Utica 
22 years ago, receives the Jodi Connor Memorial 
Scholarship from David Connor at Christmastime.

https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/936292
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/936292
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/927056
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/973415
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/973415
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/883277
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/933965
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/933965
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/883277
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/894636
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/894636
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/961134
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/961134
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/931472
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/931472
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/942698
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/942698
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/935055
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/935055
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/889582
https://www.herkimer-boces.org/article/889582


Thanks for reading the second issue of 
“Your Kids, Your BOCES!”


	23 02 February 13 Board Packet
	23 02 February 13 Agenda
	23 01 January 9 Minutes
	Treasurer's Report
	ODY 2023-24 Calendar Draft 2-8-23
	Resolution
	Policy 4300
	Policy 4301
	Policies
	Discipline Report
	Sheet1

	Budget Transfer
	Soper-Monthly BOE Report Form
	Cory Pike Feb 2023 Board Update
	IT Update
	Maintenance BOE Update
	Library
	CSE Recommendations 2-13-23
	23 02 February 13 Personnel Report
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	BOCES Budget Presentation.pdf
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego

	DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT
	District Superintendent Compensation and Expense Disclosure
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego

	CENTRAL ADMINISTRATION
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego

	BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego

	POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH INSURANCE
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego
	Totals for School Districts           9,037                8,628                     $3,645,524        $3,985,465


	CLASSROOM RENTALS
	REVENUES
	RWADA Charges
	By School District
	District        Rental      Bonds             Project        Total


	District                Administrative       Capital      Total       Administrative         Capital        Total           Dollar         Percent
	Dolgeville                            320,134             136,343            456,477       347,366       652,163       999,528     1,043,051 228.5%
	Frankfort-Schuyler           337,004            171,315            508,319        362,147    1,360,805        1,722,952        1,214,633 239.0%
	Mount Markham           447,063             206,268            653,331       499,800    1,727,070        2,226,870    1,573,539 240.8%
	Richfield Springs            173,925              91,310            265,235      195,855       708,511           904,366       639,131 241.0%

	Total               $3,629,928         $1,648,000        $5,277,928               $3,985,465          $13,797,000    $17,782,465    $12,504,537 236.9%

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Discard List - 122 - 2.10.23
	Sheet1

	BOCES Budget Presentation
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego

	DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT
	District Superintendent Compensation and Expense Disclosure
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego

	CENTRAL ADMINISTRATION
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego

	BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego

	POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH INSURANCE
	Herkimer-Fulton-Hamilton-Otsego
	Totals for School Districts           9,037                8,628                     $3,645,524        $3,985,465


	CLASSROOM RENTALS
	REVENUES
	RWADA Charges
	By School District
	District        Rental      Bonds             Project        Total


	District                Administrative       Capital      Total       Administrative         Capital        Total           Dollar         Percent
	Dolgeville                            320,134             136,343            456,477       347,366       652,163       999,528     1,043,051 228.5%
	Frankfort-Schuyler           337,004            171,315            508,319        362,147    1,360,805        1,722,952        1,214,633 239.0%
	Mount Markham           447,063             206,268            653,331       499,800    1,727,070        2,226,870    1,573,539 240.8%
	Richfield Springs            173,925              91,310            265,235      195,855       708,511           904,366       639,131 241.0%

	Total               $3,629,928         $1,648,000        $5,277,928               $3,985,465          $13,797,000    $17,782,465    $12,504,537 236.9%

	ODY Preliminary ESSA Accountability Status for the 2022-23 School Year
	219000000000_Status Summary

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



